
le"itimate Government of Greece merited the 
name of interference. \Vould the Yugoslav 
representative not consider as an interference in 
the internal affairs of his country any aid or even 
mere encouragement that the dissident elements 
of his country might receive from a foreign Power 
or from the political activities of a foreign Power ? 
In so far as Mr. Behler succeeded in justifying his 
country's interference in the internal affairs of 
Greece, he would in the future be prevented from 
opposing any intervention by one or several 
Powers in the affairs of his own country. The 
principle of non-intervention was of supreme 
importance for the small nations, and the Philip
pine delegation, which believed in that principle, 
invited all the small nations, including Yugo
slavia, to vote for the joint .Chinese, French, United 
States and United Kingdom draft resolution. 

The meeting rose at 5.40 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND EIGHTY FIRST 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Tuesday, 2 November 1948, at 10.30 a. m. 

Chairman : .Mr. P.-H. SPAAK (Belgium) 

4 7. Continuation of the discussion on 
the threats to the political inde
pendence and territorial integrity 
of Greece 

REPORTS OF THE UNITED NATIONS SPECIAL 
C0!\1!\IITTEE ON THE BALKANS (A/574, Af644 
AND A/692). 

The CHAIR~IAN invited the representative of 
Bulgaria to speak in reply to a question raised by 
the representative of Yugoslavia. 

Mr. KuusHEv (Bulgaria) stated that the 
incident which had occurred on the Bulgarian island 
of Maritza (Evros) on the Greek-Bulgarian frontier 
on the 4 April 1948 had caused the death of three 
Bulgarian soldiers. The Special Committee had 
taken no steps to determine responsibility ; it had 
merely indicated in its report that, after an investi
gation carried out by Observation Group No 6, the 
Bulgarian version of the incident seemed more 
plausible than the Greek. That fact served to 
show how the Special Committee was carrying 
out its mission ; it feigned ignorance of crimes 
committed by Greek soldiers, while admitting 
evidence to which no credence could be attached. 
That provided further proof of the Committee's 
partiality. 

Bulgaria had nevertheless not refused to colla
borate with the various organs of the United 
~ations. It had taken part in the work of the 
Security Council's Commission of Investigation. 
Despite its reservations on the subject of the 
formation of the Subsidiary Group, there had been 
a case in which Bulgaria had offered to co-operate , 

nom d'intervention l'aide que l'Albanie, Ia 
Yougoslavie et la Bulgarie donnent aux ennemis 
du Gouvernement legitime de Ia Grece. Le repre
sentant de la Yougoslavie ne considererait-il pas 
comme une intervention dans les affaires inte
rieures de son pays toute aide ou meme un simple 
encouragement que des elements dissidents de 
son pays pourraient recevoir d'une Puissance 
etrangere ou des activites politiques d'une 
Puissance etrangere '? Dans la mesure oil M. Babler 
parviendrait a justifier )'intervention de son pays 
dans les affaires interieures de la Grece, il s'inter
dirait pour l'avenir de s'opposer a toute inter
vention d'une ou plusieurs Puissances dans les 
affaires de son propre pays. Le principe de 
non-intervention est d'une importance capitale 
pour les petites nations, et la delegation des 
Philippines, qui a foi dans ce principe, invite toutes 
les petites nations, notamment la Yougoslavie, a 
voter pour le projet de resolution de Ia Chine, de 
la France, des Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 40. 

CENT-QUATRE-VINGT ET UNIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenlle au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mardi, 2 novembre 1948, ti 10 h. 30. 

President: l\1. P.-H. SPAAK (Belgique). 

4 7. Suite de la discussion sur les 
menaces a l'independance politique 
et a l'integrite territoriale de la 
Grece 

RAPPORTS DE LA COMl\IISSION SPECIALE DES 

NATIONS UNIES POUR LES BALKANS (A/574, 
A/644 ET A/692). 

Le PRESIDENT donne la parole au representant 
de la Bulgarie pour qu'il reponde a une question 
posee par le representant de la Yougoslavie. 

~1. KouLICHEV (Bulgarie) declare que }'incident 
qui eut lieu a la frontiere greco-bulgare, le 4 avril 
1948, sur une ile bulgare de la maritza (l'Evros). 
a cause la mort de trois soldats bulgares. ·La 
Commission Speciale n'a rien fait pour etablir les 
responsabilites et s'est bornee a indiquer dans 
son rapport, apres une enquete effectuee par le 
groupe d'observation 6, que la version bulg?re 
de l'incident parait plus probable que la versiOn 
grecque. Ce fait montre de queUe maniere Ia 
Commission speciale remplit sa mission : elle 
feint d'ignorcr les crimes commis par des soldats 
grecs alors qu'elle recueille des depositions 
auxquelles on nc peut accorder aucun credit. 
Cela prouve a nouveau sa partialite. 

La Bulgarie cependant n'a pas re~use de. co~la
borer avec les divers organes de I Orgamsatton 
des Nations Unies. Elle a pris part aux travaux 
de Ia Commission d'enquete du Conseil de securite. 
Malcrre les reserves qu'elle a formulees au sujet de 
la c;cation du Groupe subsidiaire, il y a cu un cas 
oi1 la Bulgarie a offert de cooperer avec ce groupe, 

362 



with that group and a Bulgarian representative 
had even travelled to Salonika in July 1947 to 
discuss an incident ; the Subsidiary Group, 
however, had laid down conditions, for the 
holding of its enquiry on Bulgarian territory which 
Bulgaria had considered unacceptable. Despite 
Bulgaria's reservations at the time the Special 
Committee was established, it had nevertheless 
agreed to take part in the investigation of the 
incident mentioned above but the results of that 
experiment had not been encouraging. 

Bulgaria's reservations with regard to the 
formation of the Special Committee were above 
all due to the fact that the establishment of that 
body was intended to give the impression that the 
Greek problem did not have its origin in the 
internal situation of the country, but in the atti
tude of Greece's northern neighbours. The 
tendentious reports of the Special Committee had 
fully justified Bulgaria's reservations, based as 
they were on the Committee's terms of reference, 
which threatened Bulgaria's sovereignty. How 
could Bulgaria collaborate with a body which had 
been entrusted with the task of slandering her ? 
For those reasons Bulgaria was opposed to any 
prolongation of the Committee's mandate. 
~loreover other delegations had made similar 
reservations. The Australian delegation in parti
cular had declared that the Special Committee's 
terms of reference included mediation and obser
vation but excluded investigation. 

The Bulgarian representative then observed 
that not a single concrete piece of evidence had 
been brought against Bulgaria establishing guilt. 
The origin of the Greek problem, which had now 
existed for over four years, was to be found solely 
in Greece herself. 

The CHAinMAN interrupted the speaker to 
inquire whether the Committee was willing to 
permit the Bulgarian representative to continue his 
speech, which obviously went beyond the scope of 
the question raised by the representative of 
Yugoslavia. 

Mr. BEELER (Yugoslavia) and General RoMULO 
(Philippines) proposed that the Bulgarian repre
sentative should be allowed to continue. General 
Romulo stated that that decision should not 
constitute a precedent. 

Mr. KuusHEV (Bulgaria) continued his speech, 
pointing out that the Greek representative's 
assertion that an agreement bad been concluded, 
on 12 July 1943, at Petrich, between the Bulgarian 
and Greek Communist Parties with a view to the 
creation of a Union of Soviet Republics for the 
Balkans had its source in a false report published 
by the Voelkischer Beobachter on 17 May 1944, a 
slander which was taken up in 1947 by the Asso
ciated Press. If any authentic document did in 
fact exist, it was the verbatim record signed, in 
October 1944, by the representatives of the 
Bulgarian forces of occupation and the Greek 
authorities in Western Thrace, under the terms of 
which the Bulgarian authorities transferred their 
powers to the Greek authorities. 

The Bulgarian Government had always 
expressed its readiness to take part in a peaceful 
settlement of disputes with Greece, in drawing up 

et un representant bulgare s'est meme rendu a 
Salonique, en juillet 1947, pour y discuter un 
incident, mais le Groupe subsidiaire a pose, pour 
l'accomplissement de son enquete en territoire 
bulgare, des conditions jugees inacceptables. 
Malgre les reserves qu'elle a faites Iors de Ia 
creation de la Commission speciale, la Bulgarie a 
consenti a participer a l'enquete relative a 
!'incident mentionne plus haut, mais Ie resultat 
de cette experience n'a pas ete encourageant. 

Les reserves formulees par Ia Bulgarie au 
moment de la creation de la Commission speciale 
etaient dues surtout au fait que, en creant cette 
Commission, on voulait donner !'impression que 
le probleme grec n'avait pas son origine dans la 
situation interieure de la Grece, mais dans !'atti
tude de ses voisins septentrionaux. Les rapports 
tendancieux de Ia Commission speciale justi
fient pleinement les reserves que la Bulgarie avait 
formulees en se fondant sur ceux des termes de 
son mandat qui pouvaient porter atteinte a la 
souverainete bulgare. La Bulgarie pouvait-elle 
collaborer avec un organe auquel etait confiee Ia 
tache de la calomnier ? Pour les memes raisons, 
la Bulgarie s'oppose a Ia prolongation du mandat 
de la Commission speciale. D'ailleurs, d'autres 
delegations ont fait des reserves du meme ordre. 
La delegation australienne, notamment, a declare 
que Ia mission de la Commission speciale compor
tait la mediation et !'observation mais excluait 
l'enquete. 

Le representant de Ia Bulgarie rappelle ensuite 
qu'on n'a pas pu reprocher a la Bulgarie un seul 
cas concret etablissant sa pretendue culpabilite. 
Les origines du probleme grec qui dure deja depuis 
quatre ans doivent etre trouvees uniquement en 
Grece meme. 

Le PRESIDENT, interrompant l'orateur, de
mande lit la Commission si elle desire que le 
representant de la Bulgarie continue son exp~se, 
qui depasse manifestement le cadre de la question 
posee par Ie representant de la Yougoslavie. 

l\1. BEBLER (Yougoslavie) et M. le general 
Ro:\IULO (Philippines) proposent que le repre ... 
sentant de la Bulgarie continue son expose. Le 
general Romulo precise qu'une decision en ce sens 
ne doit pas constituer un precedent. 

M. KouLicHEV (Bulgarie) poursuit en signalant 
que }'affirmation du representant de la Grece, 
suivant Iaquelle un accord avait ete conclu le 
12 juillet 1943 a Petritch, entre les partis commu
nistes bulgare et grec pour creer une union des 
republiques sovietiques pour les Balkans a sa 
source dans une fausse nouvelle publice par le 
Vollkischer Beobachter d u 17 mai 1944, calomnie 
reprise en 1947 par 1' Associated P,ress. S'il existe 
un document authentique, c'est lc proces-verbal 
signe au mois d' octobre 194<1 par les represent~n~s 
des troupes d'occupation bulgares et des autontes 
grecques en Thrace occidentale, aux termes duquel 
les autorites bulgares transmettaient leurs pou
voirs aux autorites grecques. 

Le Gouvernement bulgare s'est to~jours 
declare pret a participer a un reglement pacifique 
des differends avec Ia Grece, a l'etablissement de 

363 



conventions to deal with frontier incidents, in an 
equitable · solution of the problem of ethnical 
minorities and in the resumption of normal 
diplomatic relations; the Bulgarian Government, 
however, rejected the unjust charges brought 
against it in the joint resolution of the four 
Powers (A jC.l /352). In the view of the Bulgarian 
delegation, the resolution of the USSR (A JC. l j 
358jCorr.1) would on the contrary promote a just 
and reasonable solution of the Greek problem. 

Expressing the view that the Lebanese amend
ment (A /C .1 /359) was of a peculiar nature, the 
speaker stated in that connexion that if Bulgaria 
wished to become a l\Iember of the United Nations, 
she desired to do so as a free and independent 
State and without any risk to her sovereignty. In 
order to facilitate a settlement of the situation in 
the Balkans, she \vas prepared to accept, within 
the framework of the United Nations, any rcaso
nnble proposal capable of strengthening peace and 
international co-operation. 

:\Ir. PROCHAZKA (Czechoslovakia) reminded the 
Committee that his delegation, together with the 
delegations of Poland, the Ukrainian SSR, and 
the USSR, had stated in the First Committee in 
19-17 that the terms of reference of the Special 
Committee were incompatible with the principle 
of the sovereignty of States, recognized by the 
Charter. Those delegations considered that the 
despatch to Greece of a one-sided committee with 
unilateral terms of reference was incapable of 
bringing about a solution of the Greek problem. 
The three reports published by the Special 
Committee justified that negati_ve view. The 
Special Committee had achieved no positive results, 
since the problem, taken as a whole, had been 
distorted from th"' very ~tart. ~Ioreover the 
Committ"-e had followed a line of conduct, which 
went beyond its terms of reference and had done 
so in a spirit of obvious partiality. 

At present, the speaker went on, Australia, 
which had refrained from giving its approval to 
the most essential sections of the Special 
Committee's reports, also made reservations with 
regard to the activities of the Committee, consid
ering that its function was not to verify whether 
Albania, Bulgaria or Yugoslavia had given assis
tance to the Greek partisans, but to place its 
services at the disposal of the three Governments 
and of Greece to help them to settle their disputes 
and, as a subsidiary function, to supervise the 
compliance of those States with the recommend
ations of the General Assembly. The Australian 
delegation had further observed that, after a 
unanimous decision to base its instructions to 
observation groups on paragraph 5 of resolution 
109 (II) of 21 October 1947 (dealing with the 
Committee's task of reconciliation), the Com
mittee had subsequently extended the functions 
of observation groups to cover the point mentioned 
in paragraph 4 of that resolution (aid and assis
tance to Greek partisans), although ob3ervers had 
already been exceeding their original instructions 
for several months. That tardy recognition 
represented an attempt to legalize an irregular 
procedure. The Czechoslovak delegation consid
ered that the reservations of Australia were well 
founded ; in that case chapter III of the report 

conventions sur les incidents de fr·ontiere, a Ia 
solution equitable tlu probleme des minor(tcs 
ethniques et au retablissement des relations diplo
matiques normales ; il rejette toutefois les accu
sations injustcs formulees it son egard dans le 
projet de resolution commune des quatre 
Puissances (A/C.l/352). La resolution de l'URSS 
(A /C. 1j358, Corr.l), de l'avi s de la delegation 
bulgare, permettrait au contraire une solution 
juste et raisonnable du probleme grec. . . 

L'orateur fait remarquer, a propos de l'am::n
dement presente par le Liban (A/C.l /359), que 
ce dernier trouve singulier que, si Ia Bulgai·ie 
desire devenir Membre de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies, ellc veuille le devenir en tant 
qu'Etat libre et indcpendant, sans que cela porte 
atteinte a sa souverainete. Ellc est prete it 
accepter, pour le reglcment de la situation dans 
les Balkans, toute proposition raisonnable dans 
le cadre de I' Organisation des Nations. Unies, 
susceptible de consolidcr la paix et la cooperation 
internationale. · 

:\1. PROCHAZKA (Tchecoslovaquie) rappellc que 
sa delegation ainsi que cclle de Ia HSS de Bielo
russie, de Ia Pologne, de Ia HSS d'Ukraine et de 
l'URSS avaient declare en 19,17 it la Premiere 
Commission que le mandat de Ia . Commission 
speciale etait en contraclietion avee Ie principe de 
la souvcrainetc des Etats, n:connu par Ja Charte. 
Ces delegations estiment que l'envoi en Gri:cc 
d'unc~ commission unilatcrale, nantic d'un manclat 
unilateral, ne pourrait amener une solution de la 
question grecque. Les trois rapports publies par 
Ia Commission speciale confirment a present cc 
point de vue negatif. La Commission speci~c;k 
n'est arrivee a aucun rcsultat positif, car le 
problcme, dans son ensemble, etait fausse ~\ 
l'origine ; de plus, ellc a sui. vi nne ligne de condu~tc 
depassant les termes memes du mandat, dans un 
esprit de partialite cvidcnte. 

Aujourd'hui, poursuit l'orateur, I' Australie, 
qui s'est abstenue d'approuver les parties ess:.'n
tielles des rapports de la Commission speci2Jt?, 
fait cgalement des reserves sur l'activite ~e cel!e
ci, cstimant qu'elle avait rc <; u pour misswn non 
pas de verifler si l' Albanie, la Bulgarie et b. 
Yougoslavic portaient assistance aux partis2ns 
grecs, mais de se mettre a la disposition des 
Gouvernements de ces trois pays et de la GrfCC 
pour aider a resoudre leurs difierends et, subsi
diaircment, d'observer comment ces Etats ~c 
conforment aux recommandations de l'Assembke. 
La delegation australienne a fait remarqucr en 
outre que Ia Commission spccialc, apres avo1r 
decide it l'unanimitc de baser ses instructions aux. 
groupes d'observation sur Ic paragraphe 5 de .Ia 
resolution 109 (II) du 21 octobre 1947 (qui tra1te 
de la mission de conciliation de la Commission), 
a ensuite etendu le mandat des groupes d'obser
vation au point vise au paragraphe 4 de ladite 
resolution (aide et assistance aux partisa-qs grees): 
aprcs que les observateurs curent deja outrepas.se 
leur mission originale pendant plusieurs m01S. 
Cette ratification tardive constitnait une tent::l
tive pour legaliser une procedure irreguliere. La 
deleo·ation tchecoslovaquc estime, en consequence. 
que 

0

les reserves formulces p~r l' Australie SOJ~t 
fondces ; dans cc cas. le chapttrc III du rappo1 t 

364 



dealing with the main work of the Special 
Committee became pointless. 

The Australian delegation's criticisms were, 
however, incomplete. The Special Committee 
itself attributed its failure to achieve any concrete 
results in its efiorts at conciliation, to the lack of 
co-operation on the part of Greece's three neigh
hours ; but in reply to that argument, those States 
had proved that co-operation with the Committee 
would have constituted a violation of the Charter. 
Consequently, how had the Special Committee 
dared to draw inferences which appeared to be 
genuine judgments, based on data which it consid
t red inadequate ? Colonel Hodgson had rightly 
pointed out that it was impossible at one and the 
same time to be a detective, an attorney, a judge 
and a negotiator. 

\Vhat were the methods of observation used by 
the Special Committee ? It had formed 6 obser
Yation groups totalling 40 observers : 13 from the 
Lnited Kingdom, 12 from the United States, 
6 from France, etc ; thus more than half of them 
were British or American and most of them were 
military men and even instructors from the Greek 
Army. It was hardly surprising that those mili
tary men from countries which either had stra
tegic interests in Greece, or which had large 
military missions in Greece, on the pretext of 
!_;iYing economic aid should have devoted 
themselves to military investigations on the 
frontier rather than to conciliation. 

Analyzing the methods followed by those 
ubservers, the Czechoslovak representative gave 
two examples in support of the criticisms 
directed against them. Referring to document 
(.-'\. ;'C.l j355), page 6, he stated that conclusions C 
and D were not based on any direct observation, 
but simply on an assumption or a presumption. 
The method of drawing categorical conclusions 
from mere assumptions was characteristic of the 
Special Committee's methods and Colonel Hodgson 
had declared that his delegation had abstained 
from approving 'such useless and ill-advised 
conclusions, based solely on presumption. 

:\Ir. Prochazka further declared that the 
witnesses heard by the observers could not have 
been impartial because, as stated in the :Uasic 
report (A/574, paragraph 131), the majority of 
those witnesses were presented by the Greek 
Liaison Service, or were in the hands of the Greek 
authorities and had been heard in the presence of 
a Greek liaison officer. J\Ioreover, the supple
mentary, report (A/644, page 24, annex 1) 
contained long commentaries on the Committee's 
report by the Greek Liaison Service. Thus, the 
latter, not content with presenting witnesses and 
having them interrogated in its presence, even 
went to the length of drawing up commentaries 
and corrigenda which were embodied in the report 
of an organ which should have observed the 
strictest impartiality. It was interesting to view 
this fact in the light of the First Committee's 
decision not to authorize the Albanian, Bulgarian 
and Yugoslavian representatives to take part 
fully in the discussions. 

qui relate l'activite principale de Ja Commission 
speciale devient sans objet. 

Les critiques formulees par la delegation 
australienne sont toutefois incompletes. La 
Commission speciale elle-meme estime que, si 
eile n'a pu atteindre un resultat important dans 
son ceuvre de conciliation, c'est par suite du 
manque de cooperation des trois Etats voisins 
de Ia Grece ; or, ces Etats ont repondu a cet argu
ment et ont prouve que toute cooperation avec 
Ia Commission eut constitue une violation de la 
Charte. Des lors, comment la Commission spe
ciale a-t-elle ose tirer des conclusions qui · ont 
!'allure de vrais jugements, de donnees de faits 
qu'elle juge elle-meme insuffisantes ? Le colonel 
Hodgson a fait remarquer a juste titre que l'on 
ne peut etre a la fois detective, procureur, juge 
et negociateur. 

Comment Ia Commission speciale a-t-elle 
pratique ses observations ? En creant 6 groupes 
d'observation comprenant au total 40 obser
vateurs, dont 13 du Royaume-Uni, 12 des Etats
Unis, 6 fran<;ais, etc. ; plus de la moitie de ces 
observateurs etaient done britanniques ou 
americains. La plupart etaient des militaires et 
meme des instructeurs de l'armee grecque. II 
n'est done pas surprenant que ces militaires 
appartenant a des pays qui, ou bien ont des inte
rets strategiques en Grece, ou bien entretiennent 
en Grece, sous pretexte d'aide economique, une 
mission militaire importante, se soient livres a 
des enquetes militaires a Ia frontiere au lieu de 
remplir un role de conciliation. 

Analysant les methodes employees par ces 
observateurs, le representant de Ia Tchecoslo
vaquie voudrait appuyer les critiques deja formu
lees a cet egard en fournissant deux exemples. 
Citant le document A/C.l/355, page 6, il constate 
que Ies conclusions C et D ne sont basees sur 
aucune observation directe mais uniquement 
sur une hypothese, sur une presomption. Cette 
methode, consistant a tirer de simples hypotheses 
des conclusions categoriques, est typique des 
agissements de Ia Commission speciale et Ie colonel 
Hodgson a declare que sa delegation s'etait abste
nue d'approuver des conclusions aussi inutiles que 
peu acceptables et basees seulement sur des 
presomptions. 

M. Prochazka affirme, en outre, que les temoins 
entendus par les observateurs ne pouvaient 
presenter aucun caractere d'impartialite, puisque, 
comme l'indique le rapport de base (A/574, 
paragraphe 131), ces temoins etaient en majorite 
presentes par le Service de liaison grec ou etaient 
aux mains des autorites grecques et etaient 
entendus en presence du representant de liaison 
grec. De plus, le rapport supplementaire contient 
(A/644, page 30, annexe 1) de longs commentaires 
au rapport de la Commission, soumis par le 
Service de liaison grec. Ainsi, ce dernier ne se 
contente pas seulement de presenter des temoins, 
de les faire interroger en sa presence, mais il va 
jusqu'a rediger des commentaires, des corrigenda 
qui sont incorpores dans le rapport d'un organe 
qui devrait garder une stricte impartiaJ~t~ .. II 
est interessant de rapprocher ce fait de la declSlon 
de la Premiere Commission tendant a ne pas 
autoriser les representants de l'Albanie, ?~ Ia 
Bulgarie et de Ia Yougoslavie a partic1per 
pleinement aux debats. 

365 



Going on to the question of the alleged help 
given to the Greek guerrillas, M.r. Prochazka 
referred to point A, chapter III of the report 
(A/574), where the Special Committee brought up 
the proclamation of the Markos Government, and 
its opinion, given at the time when that procla
mation was made, that recognition of that Govern
ment would constitute a grave threat to the 
maintenance of international peace and security. 
Thus, the United Nations Special Committee on 
the Balkans, whose main task was conciliation, had 
overstepped its authority and made a decision of a 
political nature. Its partiality was there again 
obvious. But General Markos' peace offers were 
made essentially with a view to the creation of a 
coalition government, the cessation of all foreign 
intervention in Greece, the organization of free 
elections, the assurance of freedom for the trade 
unions and the liberation of political prisoners. 
The Czechoslovak delegation considered that those 
peace offers constituted an acceptable basis for 
negotiation which might have brought about a fair 
settlement of the dispute, and he regretted that 
the majority of the First Committee had not 
wished to ltear General Markos' representative. 

In 1947 Czechoslovakia had opposed the creation 
of the Special Committee, because it constituted 
a violation of the Charter. In 1948 it rejected the 
reports of the Committee, which had gone beyond 
its powers and submitted partial conclusions based 
on inadequate data. The Czechoslovak delegation 
also rejected the joint proposal of the four Powers, 
which was even more partial than the reports, 
since it condemned one of the parties to the 
dispute before granting it a hearing, as the 
Australian representative had pointed out. 

From the beginning, the situation in the Balkans 
had been presented in a false light, because only 
threats from the north had been taken into 
account. General Romulo, the Philippines repre
sentative, had gone so far as to state that the only 
intervention that had taken place in Greece was 
that of the three States to the north of that 
country. Nevertheless, civil war was raging 
throughout the whole country ; in spite of the 
immense help given by the United States, the 
Athens Government was powerless to crush the 
popular uprising. The Times of London, of 
29 October had stated that for the first time, 
martial law had been extended in the whole 
territory of Greece. At the present moment, 
fighting was more violent in Thessaly, Rumelia, 
the Peloponnesus and certain islands than on the 
frontiers. In those circumstances, how could it be 
alleged that Greece's northern neighbours were 
helping General Markos' guerrillas ? 

Referring to the recent remarks of the Greek 
representative as to the democratic character of 
his Government, the Czechoslowak representative 
wondered how those words could be made to fit 
with the fact that the coalition government, which 
was in control of only one-third of Greek territory, 
was about to hand over power to a people's 
government, and that in the meantime it had 
made the army responsible for public order and 
had instituted emergency military courses, as 
reported in the New York Times of 31 October. 
How could one speak of independence when the 

Passant a Ia pretendue aide apportee aux 
partisans grecs, 1\1. Prochazka se ref ere au point A 
du chapitre III du Rapport (A/574). La Commis
sion Speciale y fait etat de la proclamation du 
Gouvernement Markos et de l'avis qu'elle a emis 
a cette occasion que la reconnaissance de ce 
Gouvernement constituerait une menace pour Je 
maintien de la paix et de la securite internationale. 
Ainsi, la Commission speciale des Nations Unies 
pour les Balkans, chargee avant tout d'une 
mission de conciliation, se permet d'outrepasser 
son mandat et de prendre une decision de caractere 
politique. La encore, sa partialite est evidente. 
Cependant, les offres de paix du general Markos 
tendaient essentiellement a Ia creation d'un 
gouvernement de coalition, a la cessation de 
toute immixtion etrangere en Grece, a !'organi
sation d'elections libres, a la garantie des Jibertes 
syndicales et a la liberation des prisonniers 
politiques. La delegation tchecoslovaque estime 
que ces olires de paix constituaient une base 
acceptable de negociation, susceptible d'entrainer 
une solution juste du differend et regrette que la 
majorite de Ia Premiere Commission n'ait pas 
voulu entendre un representant du generall\larkos. 

En 1947, la Tchecoslovaquie s'etait opposee 
a Ja creation de la Commission speciale parce que 
cct acte constituait d'apres elle une violation de 
Ia Charte. En 1948, e1le rejette les rapports de 
cette Commission, qui a depasse son mandat et 
qui prescnte des conclusions partiales et insuffi
samment fondccs. La delegation tchecoslovaque 
rejette cgalcment la proposition commune des 
quatrc Puissances, plus partiale encore que les 
rapports eux-memes, puisqu'el1e porte condam
nation d'une des parties au differend avant qu'elle 
ait etc entendue, comme l'a fait remarquer le 
representant de I' Australie. . . . . 

La situation dans les Balkans a ete presente~ 
sous un jour faux des le debut car seules ont ete 
envisagee.s des menaces venant du. _no~d. Le 
general Romulo, rcpresentan~ des Ph~hppme.s, a 
meme declare qu'il n'y ava1t en Grece qu une 
seule intervention, celle des trois Etats septen
trionaux de Ia Grece. Et cependant, la _gu~rre 
civile fait rage sur !'ensemble du ternt01re; 
malgre !'aide enorme des :Etats-Unis, le ~o~ver
nement d'Athenes n'est pas en mesure de repnmer 
le mouvement populaire. Le Times de ~.ondr:s, 
du 29 octobre, signalait que, pour la premier~ f~1s, 
la }oi martia}e avait ete etendue a toutle ter:ItOITC 
grec. Les combats sont actue1lement pl~s VIole?ts 
en Thessalie en Roumelie, dans le Peloponnese 
et dans cert~ines lies qu'aux frontieres. Comment 
peut-on, dans ces conditions, pretendre q~e. Ies 
voisins du nord de la Grece aident les guenllas 
du general Markos ? 

Faisant allusion aux observations faites r_ece~~ 
ment par Je representant de Ia Grece au sujet 

1 caractere democratique de son Gouvernement, e 
representant de la TchCcoslovaquie se deman~e 
comment on peut concilier ces paroles avec le fait 

l·t· · ne contrOle que le gouvernement de coa I wn, q~I . d 
qu'un tiers du territoire grec, est a la v:IIIe e 
passer Ia main a un gouvernement popuhste ~~· 
entre temps confie le maintien de l'ordre pub !C 

a l'armee et' institue des cours militaires extr~or
dinaires, comme le rapporte le Neu;_ Y~rk Tz~:e 
du 31 octobre. Comment parler d wdependa 

366 



New York Times of 31 October mentioned the 
request made to General Marshall by the Greek 
Foreign Minister for an increase in the Greek 
armed forces, which request had been met by a 
refusal. · 

Ever since 1944 Mr. Winston Churchill had 
been calling the combatants of the Greek liber
ation forces Communist bandits. Mr. :McNeil 
had also called them bandits and pirates before 
the First Committee. The British settlers in the 
United States were also called pirates by the 
English during the War of Independence, but in 
spite of that their descendents were now seated 
in that Committee beside the English. 
~Ir. Churchill had really begun to talk about 
bandits in 1944, because in that year the United 
Kingdom had begun its direct intervention in 
Greece. The alleged intervention of Albania, 
Bulgaria and Yugoslavia in Greek affairs was also 
used as a screen for the intervention of the United 
Kingdom and the United States. The United 
~ations, falling into the trap prepared for it, was 
using the tactics of the ostrich. In judging the 
situation in Greece, all factors must be taken 
into account, and more particularby the foreign 
intervention which had been going on for four 
years and the civil war which it had kindled. 

In 1947 and 1948, the USSR delegation had 
proposed the withdrawal of foreign troops and 
missions from Greece as an essential measure. 
That proposal, based upon a clear analysis of the 
facts, satified the Czechoslovak delegation. That 
was why it would support the USSR proposal. 

::\Ir. STEPHEN (Haiti) recalled that the Yugoslav 
representative had compared the economic and 
political situation of the Greek Government with 
that of Haiti and Nicaragua, which were supposed 
to be under a sort of American protectorate. 
Haiti might be small, but it owed nothing to any 
other country ; it had always been progressive, and 
both in the Pan-American Union and in the 
United Nations, it had always shown entire 
freedom of mind. As already stated by the Cuban 
representative, there were documents to prove 
that the United States had often been in disa
greement with the Latin-American nations and 
had never attempted to bring other countries to 
follow its leadership in matters of foreign policy. 

The serious nature of the Balkan question placed 
it immediately after the Berlin crisis on the list 
of problems to be solved by the United Nations. 
There had been vain attempts to distort the 
resolution of 21 October 1947 and to accuse the 
Special Committee of not having accomplished 
its mission. A correct interpretation of reso
lution 109 (II) and an impartial examination of the 
Special Committee reports would show that 
that Committee had kept within the limits 
of its powers. 

The choice already made by most peoples 
between humanism and automatism did not 
prevent each nation from choosing the political 

alors que le New York Times du 31 octobre 
mentionne la demande faite par le ministre des 
Affaires etrangeres grec au general Marshall, 
tendant a augmenter les effectifs de l'armee 
grecque, demande a laquelle ce dernier aurait 
oppose une fin de non-recevoir ? 

L'orateur fait remarquer en outre que, des 1944, 
M. Winston Churchill traitait les combattants 
de la liberation grecque de bandits communistes. 
M. McNeil les a, lui aussi, devant la Premiere 
Commission traites de bandits et de pirates. Les 
colons britanniques aux :Etats-Unis furent ega
lement traites de pirates parIes Anglais a I'epoque 
de la guerre de l'Independance, cela n'a pas 
empechC leurs descendants de sieger a cette 
Commission a cOte des representants britanniques. 
En realite, si M. Churchill parlait de bandits 
grecs depuis 1944, c'est parce que des cette 
annee le Royaume-Uni intervenait directement 
en Grece. La pretendue intervention de l'Albanie, 
de la Bulgarie et de Ia Yougoslavie dans les 
affaires grecques sert de pretexte a !'intervention 
du Royaume-Uni et des Etats-Unis. L'Organl
sation des Nations Unies, en tombant dans le 
piege qui leur est ainsi tendu, pratique la politique 
de l'autruche. On ne peut juger de Ia situation en 
Grece sans tenir compte de tous les facteurs et, 
notamment, de !'intervention etrangere en Grece 
depuis quatre ans, ainsi que de Ia guerre civile 
avivee par cette intervention. 

La delegation de l'URSS a propose, en 1947 et 
en 1948, comme mesure essentielle le retrait 
des troupes et des missions etrangeres de la 
Grece. Cette proposition, fondee sur une analyse 
claire des faits, satisfait la delegation tcMco
slovaque. C'est pourquoi cette derniererappuiera 
Ia proposition de l'URSS. 

M. STEPHEN (Haiti) rappelle que le representant 
de la Yougoslavie a compare la situation econo
mique et politique du gouvernement grec a celle 
de Hai:ti et du Nicaragua, qui seraient sous une 
sorte de protectorat americain. Or Ia nation 
hai:tienne, pour petite qu'elle soit, n'est debitrice 
d'aucun pays ; elle a toujours marche dans la 
voie du progres et, tant au sein de l'Union pan
americaine qu'a !'Organisation des Nations Unies, 
a toujours fait preuve de la plus parfaite liberte 
d'esprit. Comme le representant de Cuba l'a 
deja indique, les documents sont la pour montrer 
que les :Etats-Unis se sont souvent trouves en 
desaccord avec Ies nations Iatino-americaines et 
qu'ils n'ont jamais rien fait pour amener les 
autres pays a suivre leurs directives en matiere 
de politique exterieure. 

Par sa gravite, la question balkanique vient 
immediatement apres la crise berlinoise sur la 
Iiste des problemes auxquels !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies se doit d'apporter une solution~ 
Or, c'est en vain qu'on a cherche a denaturer la 
resolution du 21 octobre 1947 et a accuser la 
Commission speciale de ne pas avoir rempli sa 
tache : il ressort, tant d'une interpretation 
correcte de la resolution 109 (II) que de l'examen 
impartial des rapports de la Commission speciale, 
que cet organe est reste dans le cadre de ses 
attributions. 

Le choix qu'ont deja fait la majorite des peupl~s 
entre l'humanisme et l'automatisme n'interd1t 
pas a chaque nation de choisir le systeme politique 

367 



system best suited to it. It was, however, 
inadmissible that a few countries shouid take 
upon themselves to impose the totalitarian yoke 
of the one-party system on any one people, 
even on the whole world. The United Nations, 
whose duty it was to safeguard the rights of 
peoples to self-determination, could not allow 
the introduction of a disruptive element into 
lhe political system of a foreign country, whether 
hy means . of incitement to revolt, or by giving 
help to rebels sharing the same political ideology. 
The ::\larkos forces had not been able to hold out 
against the regular Greek army, which had 
receiYed over 300 million dollars worth of Amer
ican war material, with their own resources. 
War material was quickly worn out and had to 
be replaced. Therefore, it was only necessary 
to analyze the Special Committee's reports and 
lhc statement of the Yugoslav, Bulgarian and 
Albanian representatives to arrive at the conclu
sion that the three countries had to a certain 
extent intervened in the internal affairs of 
Greece, and that the recommendations of the 
resolution of 21 October 1947 should be reafnrmed 
once again. 

The people of Haiti, \Vho had always coura
geously defended their political independence 
and their territorial integrity, could only declare 
its support of the conclusions of the Special 
Committee's report and of the draft resolution 
.<>ubmitted by the French, United States, United 
Kingdom and Chinese delegations, with a reserv
ation as to any amendments which might 
appear advisable. 

i\lr. BEBLER (Yugoslavia) stated that in the part 
of his speech referred to by the representative 
of Haiti he had simply quoted an American 
journalist. 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) said that he had no 
reason to doubt the soundness of the conclusions 
reached by the Special Committee to the effect 
that " the Greek guerrillas had continued to 
receive aid and assistance on a large scale from 
Albania, Bulgaria and Yugoslavia and with the 
knowledge of the Governments of those countries " 
That obviously constituted a situation incom
patible with the obligations of the Members of the 
United Nations under Article 2 of the Charter; 
moreover, the same Article stated that it was the 
duty of the United Nations to ensure respect by 
States which were not Meinbers of the United 
Nations for such obligations as were necessary for 
the maintenance of international peace and 
security. 

The Greek problem was complex. But from the 
international point of view, the essential . point 
was that of interference in the affairs of a Member 
State, supported or tolerated by the Govern
ments of other States. That would be true, 
even allowing that the cause of the disturbances 
was not of an international character, but involved 
only Greek internal afiairs. Thus, in the case 
of Spain, the internal conflict of political forces 
in no way detracted from the guilt of the foreign 
Powers which had helped the insurgents strug
alino· against the recognized Government of their 
0 b . l tb . country. That point of vww me een v1go-

qui lui convient le mieux. Mais ce qui est.inadmis
sible, c'est que quelques pays s'arrogent le. droit 
d'imposer le joug totalitaire du parti unique a un 
peuple quel qu'il soit, voire meme au monde 
entier. L'Organisation des Nations Unies, qui 
doit veiller au respect du principe du droit des 
peuples a disposer d'eux-memes, ne saurait 
permettre que certains introduisent dans le 
systeme politique d'un pays etranger un element 
de perturbation, solt en fomentant des revoltes, 
soit en accordant aide et assistance a des rebelles 
qui partageraient leurs idees politiques. Or, ce 
n'est pas avec leurs propres ressources que les 
forces de Markos ont pu tenir contre l'armee 
reguliere grecque qui a re<;u plu de 300 millions 
de dollars de materiel de guerre americain. Le 
materiel de guerre s'use vite, et ii faut le renou
veler. II suffit done d'analyser les rapports de Ia 
Commission speciale et les declarations des 
representants yougoslave, bulgare et albanais 
eux-memes pour conclure qu'il y a eu de Ia 
part de ces trois pays une certaine ingerence dans 
les affaires interieures de la Grece et qu'il convient 
de renouveler une derniere fois les recomman
dations de la resolution du 21 octobre 1947. 

Le peuple haltien, qui a toujours defendu avec 
courage son independance politique et son 
integrite territoriale, ne peut que se declarer en 
faveur des conclusions du rapport de Ia Commis
sion speciale et du projet de resolution presente 
par la France, les Etats-Unis, le Royaume-Uni 
et la Chine, sous reserve des modifications qui 
pourraient apparaltre utiles. 

M. BEBLER (Yougoslavie) precise que, en ce 
qui concerne la partie de son intervention a 
laquelle s'est refere le representant de Haiti, il 
n'a fait que citer un journaliste americain. 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-zelande) declare qu'il 
n'y a aucune raison de douter du bien-fonde de 
Ia conclusion a laquelle Ia Commission spedale 
est arrivee, scion laquelle « les partisans grecs 
ont continue a recevoir, sur une grande echelle, 
aide et assistance en provenance d'Albanie, de 
Bulgarie et de Yougoslavie au su des Gouver
nements de l'Albanie, de la Bulgarie et de Ia 
Yougoslavic ». C'est Ia, de toute evidence, une 
situation contraire aux obligations qu'assument 
les l\lembres de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
en vertu de l' Article 2 de la Charte ; d'autre part, 
le meme article indique qu'il est du devoir de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies de faire en 
sorte que les Etats qui ne sont pas Membres des 
Nations Unies respectent ces obligations dans Ia 
mesure necessaire au maintien de la paix et de Ia 
securitc internationales. 

Le probleme grec est complexe. Mais, du point 
de vue international, le point essentiel est !'inge
rence dans les affaires d'un Etat Membre, favorisee 
ou toleree par les Gouvernements d'autres .Etats. 
Cela resterait vrai, meme si l'on admettmt que 
l'origine de tout le mal n'eut pas un caractere 
international mais rcsidat dans les affaires 
interieures de la Grcce. C'est ainsi que, dans le 
cas de l'Espagne, le contlit interieur de~. f?rces 
politiques ne diminuait en rien la culpab~hte d~s 
Puissances etrangeres qui aidaient Ies msurges 
en lutte contre Ie gouvernement reconnu de leur 
pays. Tel est d'aillcurs le point de vue que Ia 

368 



rously upheld by the New Zealand delegation in 
the League of Nations Council. 

Consequently if, as the New Zealand delegation 
believed, the observers' action might have helped 
to limit the extent of the acts of intervention, 
which, however slight, were always inadmisssible, 
the Assembly should maintain those observation 
groups. Moreover, the accusations made by 
Yugoslavia and Bulgaria regarding alleged frontier 
violations by Greek forces, supposing they were 
well-founded, would be yet another reason for 
maintaining the system of frontier observation. 

The resolution of 21 October 1947 had a dual 
object. The Special Committee might have had 
some measure of success in observing frontier 
incidents, but little or nothing had been accom
plished from the diplomatic and political point 
of view. The Special Committee, which there 
was no question of criticizing, had reported on the 
considerable efforts it had made to bring about a 
restoration of normal relations between Greece, 
Albania, Bulgaria and Yugoslavia. Those poli
tical objectives were, however, at present, unat
tainable. Diplomatic skill and the spirit of 
compromise could not solve that problem ; what 
was needed was respect for the elementary rules 
of international law regarding intervention in the 
internal affairs of States, and for the special 
obligations incumbent on Members of the United 
Xations under paragraphs 3 and 4 of Article 2 of 
the Charter, which obligations should also be 
imposed on non-Member States under paragraph 6 
of the same Article. Only when that object had 
been attained, would frontier observation and the 
Greek Government's request for assistance, so vio
lently criticized, lose their principal justification. 

Had it not been for the resolution of 
October 1947, which set up the Special Committee 
and allotted to it its dual task, it might have been 
preferable to separate the two kinds of functions by 
setting up a small political body on the one hand 
and a committee of good offices on the other. It 
was to be hoped that the countries represented 
in the Special Committee would express their 
views on that point. 

The great Powers should also take a stand on the 
Special Committee's recommendation that the 
General Assembly should try to obtain the 
co-operation of Albania,.Bulgaria and Yugoslavia 
with the Committee. Had the authors of the 
four-Power resolution considered the question 
raised by the Committee's appeal ? Did the 
reference to the Mexican proposal imply that an 
effort was being contemplated to reach agreement, 
or was it hoped that the Security Council would 
show a new spirit in approaching a problem which 
>vould certainly have been solved had the Council 
neen able to carry out its duty. As the represen
tative of the United States had already pointed 
out, it was in fact only the failure of the Security 
Council to fulfil the duties entrusted to it by the 
Charter, which had prompted the General 
Assembly to take up that matter. 

delegation de la Nouvelle-Zelande avait energique
ment soutenu au Conseil de la Societe des Nations. 

En consequence, si comme le pense Ia delegation 
de la Nouvelle-Zelande, !'action des observateurs 
peut avoir contribue a limiter !'importance 
d'actes d'intervention, toujours inadmissibles, 
si reduits soient-ils, l'Assemblee se doit de 
prolonger cette mission d'observation. De plus, les 
accusations formulees par la Yougoslavie et la 
Bulgarie, qui alleguent de pretendues violations 
de frontieres commises par les forces grecques, 
meme a les supposer fondees, constitueraient une 
raison de plus pour maintenir un systeme d'obser
vation des frontieres. 

L'objet de la resolution du 21 octobre 1947 
etait double. Or, si la Commission speciale a, 
dans une certaine mesure, reussi a observer les 
incidents de frontiere, cet organisme n'a obtenu 
que des resultats faibles ou nuls dans l'accom
plissement de ses fonctions diplomatiques et 
politiques. La Commission speciale, qu'il ne 
s'agit d'ailleurs nullement de critiquer, a fait 
rapport sur ses efforts considerables en vue du 
retablissement de relations normales entre la 
Grece, l'Albanie, la Bulgarie et la Yougoslavie. 
Mais ces objectifs politiques ne peuvent etre 
atteints actuellement. L'ingeniosite diplomatique 
et !'esprit de compromis seraient impuissants a 
resoudre ce probleme, ce qu'il faudrait,. c'est que 
les regles elementaires du droit international en 
matiere d'intervention dans les affaires interieures 
des Etats fussent respectees, ainsi que les obli
gations particulieres qui incombent aux Membres 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies en vertu 
des paragraphes 3 et 4 de l' Article 2 de la Charte, 
obligations dont le respect doit en outre etre 
impose aux :Etats non Membres en vertu du 
paragraphe 6 de ce meme Article. Ce n'est qu'une 
fois ce resultat atteint, que !'observation aux 
frontieres et la demande d'assistance du Gouver
nement grec, que l'on a si violemment critique, 
perdront leur principale justification. 

Si la resolution d'octobre 1947 n'avait pas 
organise Ia Commission speciale et ne lui avait pas 
donne sa double tache, il aurait peut-etre ete 
preferable de separer les deux ordres de fonctions 
en instituant un organisme politique restreint 
d'une part, et une commission de bons offices de 
!'autre. II serait a souhaiter que les pays repre
sentes au sein de la Commission speciale fissent 
connaitre leurs vues sur ce point. 

Les grandes Puissances devraient egalement 
indiquer leurs positions relativement a la recom
mandation de la Commission speciale, selon 
laquelle l' Assemblee generale devrait chercher a 
obtenir que I' Albanie, la Bulgarie et la Yougoslavie 
cooperent avec cette Commission. Les auteurs 
de la resolution des quatre Puissances ont-ils 
examine la question posee par cet appel de la 
Commission ? Songerait-on peut-etre a un effort 
pour arriver a une entente en se referant a la 
proposition du Mexique ? Ou bien espere-t-on 
que le Conseil de securite abordera dans un nouv~l 
esprit un probleme que, s'il avait pu accomphr 
son devoir, il aurait certainement resolu ? Comme, 
en effet, le representant des Etats-Unis l'a rappele, 
ce n'est que le fait que le Conseil de securite a 
manque aux devoirs que lui impose la Charte 
qui a amene I' Assemblee generale a prendre cette 
affaire en mains. 

369 



Mr. KATz-SucHY (Poland) said that no reply had 
been given to the delegations which had criti
cized the evidence brought forward by the Special 
Committee to support its allegations. In view of 
the fact that most delegations had not studied the 
reports of the Special Committee, not to mention 
the six volumes of evidence collected by that body, 
they could not but declare that they accepted 
the Committee's report, and that they would vote 
for the four-Power draft resolution . . 

The delegation of Poland had pointed out many 
flaws in the evidence collected by the Special 
Committee, flaws which bereft the whole structure 
of its basis. No attempt had been made to 
explain the contradictions which had been 
shown. It was true that, following the statement 
of the USSR representative, Mr. Dulles had 
thought it his duty to publish a letter of 28 October 
1948, together with a certain number of quotations 
(AJC.1/355). None of the allegations of the 
United States delegation, however, was supported 
by facts. 

Turning to the first case mentioned in document 
A/C.1 /355, Mr. Katz-Suchy pointed out that the 
observers had not shown at what distance from . 
the frontier the machine-gun, " firing from a 
position inside Yugoslav territory", was situated. 
Yet in view of the type of geometrical calculation 
used by the observers, it should have been possible 
to give at least an approximate figure, especially 
as the observers stated that there was a Yugoslav 
frontier post at about 700 metres fron the position 
of the machine-gun they had observed. Also, 
if the observation were based only on the light 
from the firing of the machine-gun, how could the 
observers establish at which target the machine
gun was firing ? 

Moreover, the observers did not say that it was 
possible to see the position of the machine-gun 
from the Yugoslav frontier post or that the frontier 
station knew where the machine-gun was situated. 

. According to conclusion 1 (c) of Mr. Dulles' 
first remark, the machine-gun had been sited on 
Greek territory, at the base of a pyramid ; but 
how could anyone at the base of a pyramid 
1.60 metres high tell whether it was in Yugoslav or 
in Greek territory ? 

With regard to the second remark, it had not 
been shown in the report of the Special Committee 
at what distance within the Albanian frontier was 
the artillery which was believed to have fired from 
the slope of Mount Golio. Moreover, what had 
been the indications that it was a guerrilla station 
and not a machine-gun nest of the Albanian 
Army ? Finally, how many guerrillas " were 
moving on the path in Albania towards Golio 
positions ", and how had they been recognized 
as guerrillas ? 

Mr. Katz-Suchy then turned to Mr. Dulles' 
third remark. The conclusions of the Special 
Committee stated that " the group had observed a 
number of men at that post, some of them wearing 
a uniform which might have been Bulgarian ". 
How could observers capable of recognizing 
guerrillas at a distance of 3,000 metres not recog-

M. KATz-SucHY (Pologne) declare qu'aucune 
reponse n'a ete faite aux deh~gations qui avaient 
critique les temoignages fournis par Ia Commission 
speciale a l'appui de ses allegations. Faute d'avoir 
etudie les rapports de Ia Commission speciale, 
ou encore bien moins les six volumes dans lesquels 
se trouvent renfermes les temoignages recueillis 
par cet organisme, la plupart des delegations 
n'ont pu que declarer qu'elles acceptaient Ie 
rapport de Ia Commission, et qu'elles voteraient 
pour le projet de resolution des quatre Puissances. 

La delegation de Ia Pologne a signale bien des 
defauts dans les temoignages recueillis par Ia 
Commission Speciale, des defauts tels qu'en realite 
tout !'edifice s'ecroule. Des contradictions ont 
ete relevees, que personne n'a tente d'expliquer. 
II est vrai que M. Dulles a cru devoir, a la suite 
de !'intervention du representant de l'URSS, 
publier une lettre en date du 28 octobre 1948, 
accompagnee d'un certain nombre de citations 
(AJC.1 /355). Mais aucune des allegations de la 
delegation des Etats-Unis ne se trouve pour 
autant etayee. 

Se referant au premier cas dont il est fait 
mention dans le document A/C.l/355, M. Katz
Suchy souligne que les observateurs n'ont pas 
indique a quelle distance de la frontiere se trouvait 
Ia mitrailleuse « tirant d'une position en territoire 
yougoslave n. Or, etant donne le genre de calcul 
geometrique dont les observateurs ont declare 
faire usage, il aurait du leur etre possible de 
donner un chiffre, dut-il etre approximatif, 
d'autant que lcs observatcurs declarent qu'il Y 
avait un poste frontiere yougoslave a environ 
700 metres de la position de Ia mitrailleuse 
observee. D'autre part, si les observations se 
fondaient sur la lueur du feu de la mitrailleuse, 
les observateurs ne pouvaient pas determiner les 
objectifs sur lesquels la mitrailleuse tirait. 

En outre, les observateurs ne disent pas que 
du poste frontiere yougoslave on pouvait voir 
la position de la mitrailleuse, ni que le .poste 
frontiere devait savoir ou se trouvmt 1a 
mitrailleuse. 

Selon Ia conclusion 1 c) relative ala Remarque.I 
de M. Dulles, la mitrailleuse aurait ete install~e 
en territoire grec au pied d'une pyramide, m,ats 
comment une personne qui se trouve au pted 
d'une pyramide de 1 m. 60 de haut, peut-elle 
se rendre compte si elle est en territoire yougoslaYe 
ou en territoire grec ? 

En ce qui concerne Ia Remarque II, il n'es~ pas 
indique dans le rapport de Ia Commission spe~~ale 
a queUe distance a l'interieur des front~eres 
albanaises se trouvait la piece d'artillerie qm est 
censee avoirtire du versant dumont Golio. D'autre 
part, d'apres quels indices a-t-on pu reconna~tre 
qu'il s'agissait d'un poste de partisans et non dun. 
nid de mitrailleuses de l'armee albanaise ? Entin, 
combien de partisans « suivaient un sentier en 
Albanie vers les positions sur le Golio » '! Et 
comment a-t-on su qu'il s'agissait de partisans ? 

M. Katz-Suchy se refere ensuite a la rc
marque III de M. Dulles. Les conclusions de la 
Commission speciale indiqucnt que « le groupe a 
observe un certain nombre d'hommes dans ce 
poste, certains portant des uniformes qui pou
:vaient etre bulgares n. Mais comment des. obseri 
vateurs capables de reconnaitre des parttsam; 

370 



n'fze the Bulgarian uniform at a distance of 
15_0 metres ? 

\-Vith regard to conclusion B of that same third 
remark, the group stated that " guerrilla mor
tars were fired ·from a position approximately 
400 metres in Bulgarian territory ". Moreover, 
those observers admitted that " shells fired 
against guerrillas in Greece had fallen in Bulgarian 
territory ". Nevertheless, although the anger of 
the Bulgarian soldiers at the fire thus directed 
against them by Athens Government troops would 
have been understandable, the observers did not 
say that they had actually seen any firing from 
Bulgarian territory. Happily their sense of 
hearing had not failed them. 

- According to the third conclusion of that same 
remark, cannon shells had been fired from a 
distance of 500 metres inside Bulgarian territory 
and had hit the group situated at least 50 metres 
from the frontier. .It was strange that in those 
wooded mountains the range of a shell was no 
more than 550 metres. 

Those were only a few examples of the contra
dictions with which Mr. Dulles' statement was 
riddled. 

Mr. McNeil had painted a moving picture of 
Greek fishermen and farmers. Recently, however, 
the British Embassy had denounced 58 Greeks 
to the Government and had asked that they 
should be disarmed. \Vere there no fishermen 
or farmers among those 58 Greeks ? Fortunately 
the British people did not share the feelings of 
::\Ir. McNeil. On 12 June 1948 Mr. Laski himself 
had condemned the Anglo-American plot to 
crush Greek democracy in Forward. Nevertheless, 
as l\Ir. McNeil had indicated, the United Kingdom 
had strategic interests in Greece and needed a 
•• sympathetic" government. 

It was the British Army which had overthrown 
the first coalition government and had let civil 
war loose in December 1944. A British corporal, 
s:H. Starr, who belonged to a unit which had 
fought against the Greek people, had, during a 
public meeting in London, spoken of the shame 
which he felt when he read the despair on the 
faces of the imprisoned Greek women. S. H. 
Starr had concluded: "let the Greeks choose 
their own Government and make Greece into a 
country where life is worth living ". 

Turning to the territorial claims made by 
Greece, Mr. Katz-Suchy pointed out that, although 
in some cases territorial claims could be justified, 
in the case of Greece that was not so. That 
country, which had asserted its claims against 
Bulgaria and Albania, had declared that it was 
ready to abandon its .claims agains.t Bulgar~a, 
but continued to regard Itself at war With Albama. 
It should be remembered that the Peace Treaty 
signed between Greece and Italy had also been 
signed by Albania, which ~on~ide~ed th~t Treaty 
a guarantee of its terntonal m~egnty. The 
Greek representative stated that tt was most 
desirable that a peace treaty should be concluded 
·with Albania ; he should follow up that statement 
by acting upon the Peace Treaty wi~h Italy ~nd 
by not making claims which were mcompatible 
with the terms of that treaty. The territorial 
claims of the Greek Government, which should 

3.000 metres ne reconnaissent-ils plus I'uniforme 
bulgare a 150 metres ? 

En ce qui concerne la conclusion B de cette 
meme remarque III, le groupe declare qu 'il 
« a entendu un tir de mortier qu'il a estime 
venir de 400 metres en territoire bulgare ». Or, 
ces observateurs admettent que << des obus de 
I'artillerie grecque etaient tombes en territoire 
bulgare >>. Toutefois, bien qu'il eut ete compre
hensible que les soldats bulgares s'irritent de ce 
tir dirige contre eux par les troupes du Gouver
nement d'Athenes, les observateurs ne declarent 
pas avoir vu reellement tirer du tenitoire bulgare. 
Heureusement, le sens de I'oui:e ne leur a pas 
fait defaut. 

Selon Ia troisieme conclusion relative a cette 
meme remarque, un canon a tire de 500 metres en 
territoire bulgare et a atteint le groupe qui se 
trouvait a moins de 50 metres de la frontiere. Mais 
comment sur ces montagnes boisees, la portee d'un 
obus a-t-elle pu ne pas depasser 550 metres ? 

Ce ne sont la que des exemples, entre bien 
d'autres, des contradictions dont fonrmille la 
declaration de M. Dulles. 

M. McNeil a donne dans le pathetique a propos 
des pecheurs et des agriculteurs grecs. Mais 
rccemment l'Ambassade britannique denon~ait 
au Gouvernement grec 58 personnes qu'elle 
demandait qu'on desarmat. N'y avait-il pas des 
pecheurs ou des agriculteurs parmi ces 58 Grecs ? 
Par bonheur, le peuple britannique n'est pas du 
meme sentiment que_ M. McNeil. M. Laski lui
meme a fletri le 12 juin 1948, dans le Forward, 
la complicitc anglo-americaine dans l'ecrasement 
de la democratic grecque. Toutefois, comme 
M. McNeil l'a indique, le Royaume-Uni a des 
interets strategiques en Grece et il lui faut un 
gouvernement qui soit << en sympathie » avec 
lui. 

C'est l'armee britapnique qui a renverse le 
premier gouvernement de coalition et a dechaine 
la guerre civile en decembre 1944. Un caporal 
britannique, S.H. Starr, qui appartenait a une 
unite qui a combattu contre lc peuple grec, a, 
au cours d'une reunion publique a Londres, dit 
sa honte lorsqu'il lisait le desespoir sur le visage 
des femmes grecques emprisonnees. S.H. Starr 
concluait : << Laissons les Grecs choisir leur propre 
gouvernement et faire de la Grece un pays oil la 
vie vaille Ia peine d'etre vecue. >> 

Passant aux revendications territoriales de la 
Grece, M. Katz-Suchy fait observer que si, dans 
certains cas, des revendications de ce genre 
peuvent etre justifiees, elles ne le sont pas dans 
le cas de la Grece. Ce pays, qui faisait valoir des 
revendications contre la Bulgarie et I' Albanie, se 
declare pret a renoncer a ses pretentious contre 
la Bulgarie, mais persiste a se considerer en etat 
de guerre avec l'Albanie. Or, Je Traite de paix 
qu'a signe la Grece avec l'Italie n'a-t-il pas ete 
signe egalement par l' Albanie, qui se voyait ainsi 
garantir I'integrite de son territoire ? Le repre
sentant de la Grece declare qu'il est fort desireux 
de conclure un traite de paix avec 1' Albanie : 
mais qu'il commence done par executer le Traite 
de paix avec l'ltalie, en n'elevant pas de reven
dications qui soient en contradiction avec le tex~e 
de ce traite. Ce qu'il y a a rctenir des revendl
cations territorialcs du Gouvernement grec, 

I 



perhaps not be taken too seriously, were of 
interest in so far as they threw light onto the 
general policy of that Government. 

Mr. Pipinelis had spoken of the great Greek 
democracy and had said that his Government, 
which was accused of imposing a rule of inhuman 
terror, was only doing what other governments 
had done. In that case, what of the march of 
the Salonika prisoners in chains, and beaten 
by the crowd ? Would Mr. Pipinelis deny those 
facts or would he say that it was an everyday 
occurrence ? Perhaps Mr. Pipinelis would also 
deny that thousands of guerrillas and prisoners 
had been condemned on false evidence. 

Certain delegations said that the matter con
cerned the internal affairs of Greece. That 
was true, or at least it would be true if the inter
vention of the United States and the United 
Kingdom had not turned the civil war in Greece 
into an international conflict. The countries 
of Latin America knew the meaning of American 
intervention, of "Yankee imperialism ". More
over, had not popular protest been widespread 
when the Philippine Parliament had been forced 
by the United States to amend certain constitu
tional and legislative provisions on trade ? 
Was it true, as Mr. Chevrier had said, that the 
departure of the Americans would mean the 
arrival of the Russians ? Could 400 American 
officers and the Greek Army prevent the USSR 
Army from penetrating into Greece ? 

The Special Committee had been right in 
saying that there was a threat to the independence 
of Greece, but Poland had not taken part in the 
work of that body and had opposed its establish
ment because it considered that it was being set 
up in order to obscure the true reasons for foreign 
intervention in Greece and to divert the attention 
of the United Nations and of the world to a few 
skirmishes of secondary importance, more or 
less accurately reported. 

The Special Committee had not dealt with 
the accusations of United States intervention in 
Greece, or with the questions as to why fighting 
was going on in the Peloponnesus, how arms 
arrived in Greece by sea, why the guerrillas were 
at the gates of Athens, and what was to be said 
of the battle of Larissa. The Special Committee 
had been content with witnesses such as those of 
Observation Group N° 1, namely two captured 
guerrillas and one Albanian deserter. From 
such witnesses it could easily be concluded that 
Albania had furnished aid to the guerrillas. 
Surely as eminent a lawyer as the President of 
the Supreme Court of Uruguay could not permit 
a verdict against a State on such evidence. 

The representative of Haiti had stated that 
munitions were quickly exhausted, and that it 
followed that Greek guerrillas were aided by 
neighbouring countries. How was it then that 
in Greece, as in the territory of the Byelorussian 
SSR, the Ukrainian SSR, the Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics and Poland, guerrillas had 
held their ground, foot by foot, for three years ? 

- qu'il ne convient peut-etre pas de prendre trop 
au serieux- c'est qu'elles soot susceptibles de 
jeter une certaine lumiere sur Ia politique generale 
du Gouvernement qui les formule. 

M. Pipinelis a parle de Ia grande democratic 
grecque et declare que son Gouvernement, que 
l'on accuse de faire regner une terreur inhumaine, 
ne faisait qu'agir comme tous les gouvernements. 
Mais qu'en est-il done de la marche des prisonniers 
de Salonique, enchalnes et frappes par la foule. 
M. Pipinelis niera-t-il ces faits ou bien declarera
t-il que c'est la monnaie courante ? Peut-etre 
M. Pipinelis niera-t-il aussi que des milliers de 
partisans et de prisonniers ont ete juges sur des 
temoignages fallacieux ? 

Certaines delegations declarent qu'il s'agit Ia 
d'affaires interieures de Ia Grece. Cela est vrai, 
ou tout au moins cela serait vrai si l'intervention 
des Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni n'avait fait 
de la guerre civile en Grece un conflit inter
national. Or, les pays de 1' Amerique Ia tine 
savent ce qu'est !'intervention americaine, l'« im
perialisme yankee n. D'autre part, aux Philippines, 
la protestation populaire n'a-t-elle pas retenti 
lorsque le Parlement a ete force par les Etats
Unis a amender certaines dispositions constitu
tionnelles et legislatives en matiere commerciale ? 
Va-t-on dire avec M. Chevrier que le depart des 
Americains signifierait l'arrivce des Russes? Mais 
est-ce done les 400 officiers americains et l'armee 
grecque qui pourraient empecher l'armee de 
l'URSS de penetrer en Grece ? 

La Commission speciale n'a pas tort de dire 
qu'il existe une menace a l'independance de 
la Grece, mais si la Pologne s'est abstenue de 
participer au travail de cet organisme et s'est 
opposee a sa formation, c'est parce qu'eile consi
derait que les motifs reels de son institution 
residaient dans la necessite de dissimuler Jes 
raisons veritables de !'intervention etrangere en 
Grece, et de detourner I' attention de !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies et du monde sur quelques 
escarmouches d'importance bien secondaire et 
dccrites de fa<;on plus ou moins exacte. 

La Commission speciale n'a pas traite des 
accusations relatives a !'intervention des :Etats
Unis en Grece et n'a pas non plus repondu aux 
questions suivantes. Pourquoi se bat-on dans 
le Peloponnese ? Comment les annes arrivent
elles par mer en Grece ? Pourquoi les partisan_s 
sont-ils aux partes d'Athenes ? Qu'en .es~-tl 
de la bataille de Larissa ? Non, la Commtsston 
speciale s'est contentee de temoins co~me 
ceux du groupe d'observation 1 : deux partisans 
captures et un deserteur albanais. Avec de te~s 
temoins, on peut aisement conclure que l'~lb_ame 
a fourni une aide aux partisans. Mais des JUnstes 
aussi eminents que le president de la cour su
preme de l'Uruguay peuvent-ils admettre que 
l'on rende un jugement contre un Etat sur des 
bases pareilles ? 

Le representant de HaYti a declare qu~ les 
munitions s'epuisent vite, que les partisans 
grecs devaient done etre aides par les pays 
voisins. Mais comment se fait-il alors que, en 
Grece comme sur le terriitoire de la RSS de 
Bielorussie de la RSS d'Ukraine, de l'URSS, 
de la Pol;gne, des partisans se soient Mfendus 
pied a pied pendant trois ans ? 

372 



The First Committee's attention had not been 
drawn to the fact that the arms captured by Greek 
Government troops had always been found to 
belong to those same Government forces. The 
Commission of Investigation of the Security 
Council had even declared in no uncertain manner 
that the bulk of the arms captured were of British 
make and bore serial numbers. It should be 
easy to verify the origin of captured arms from 
those numbers. On the other hand, no arm 
had ever been produced of which it could be said 
that it had been provided by Greece's northern 
neighbours and captured from the guerrillas. 
In 1946 the Greek Government had submitted 
such exhibits as cigarette paper, Yugoslav cigars, 
a gun of Finnish make, and a military coat 
which could be of Yugoslav, Bulgarian or any 
other origin. In the long history of the Greek 
question, only such fragile proofs had been pro
duced ; yet they had satisfied the Special Com
mittee. 

The four-Power draft resolution sought to 
obtain the support of the United Nations for 
United States intervention to an even greater 
degree ; that was contrary not only to the interests 
of the Greek people but to the aims of the United 
Nations. The Truman doctrine was in fact not 
only a violation of the Charter but also a violation 
of resolutions definitely adopted. 

To that statement Mr. Dulles would reply, 
quoting Goebbels, that he was fighting against 
world Communism which was striving to triumph 
by force of arms. What precisely did Mr. Dulles 
\vant ? Surely he knew that the language of 
,"\1ein Kwnpf had never done anything but bring 
desolation to the world. It was not impossible 
to put an end to civil war in Greece, for the two 
camps had always declared that they did not 
claim power for themselves alone. There was 
only one obstacle to the establishment of peace 
in that country, namely the United States, to 
whom peace would mean the end of its inter
vention. 

Consequently, if the First Committee sincerely 
desired that Greece should return to a peaceful 
and normal life, it could not but order the with
drawal of all foreign troops from Greece, and 
suggest to the Greek people and Government 
and to all the parties interested in re-establishing 
peace, that they should negotiate an agreement 
and set up a Government capable of restoring 
peace and prosperity in that country. 

General RoMULO (Philippines) pointed out that 
the law which had been given as an example of 
United States intervention was the Philippine 
Trade Act of 1946, which he supported in the 
United States Congress where he had represented 
the Philippines before it became independent. 
Moreover, the Filipino people had been consulted 
by plebisciste, and the law had been adopted 
with an overwhelming majority. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

II y a un fait sur lequel on n'a pas attire I' atten
tion de la Premiere Commission, c'est que les 
armes capturees par les troupes gouvernemen
tales grecques se trouvaient toujours avoir 
appartenu a ces memes forces gouvernementales. 
La Commission d'enquete du Conseil de securite 
avait meme declare d'une fac;on tout a fait 
nette que la plupart des armes capturees etaient 
de fabrication anglaise, et qu'elles portaient 
toutes des numeros d'ordre. II devrait done etre 
facile, d'apres les numeros figurant sur les armes 
capturees, de verifier leur origine. Comment 
se fait-il, d'autre part, qu'on n'ait jamais produit 
ici une arme dont on puisse affirmer qu'elle a 
ete fournie par les voisins du nord de la Grece et 
prise aux partisans ? En 1946, 'le Gouvernement 
grec avait bien soumis des pieces a conviction : 
du papier a cigarettes, des cigares yougoslaves, 
un fusil de fabrication finlandaise et un man
teau militaire qui pouvait etre yougoslave ou 
bulgare ou de toute autre origine. Et dans toute 

. la longue histoire de la question grecque, on n'a 
jamais fait mieux que de fournir des preuves aussi 
fragiles qui, il est vrai, ont suffi a la Commission 
speciale. 

Le projet de resolution des quatre Puissances 
vise a engager davantage encore !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies en faveur de !'intervention 
americaine, ce qui est contraire non seulement 
aux interets du peuple grec, mais aux buts de 
!'Organisation. En effet, Ia doctrine Truman 
ne constitue pas seulement une violation de la 
Charte, mais aussi une violation de resolutions 
clairement adoptees. 

A cela M. Dulles repondra en citant Grebbels 
et en disant qu'il combat le communisme mondial 
qui essaie de triompher par la force C.es armes. 
Mais oil M. Dulles veut-il done en venir ? Ne 
sait-il pas que le langage de Mein Kampf n'a 
jamais fait que semer la desolation dans le monde ? 
II n'est pas impossible de mettre fin a la guerre 
civile en Grece, puisque les deux camps ont 
toujours declare qu'ils ne reclamaient pas le 
pouvoir pour eux seuls. II n'y a qu'un seul 
obstacle a l'etablissement de la paix dans ce 
pays : Jes Etats-Unis, pour lesquels la paix 
signifierait la fin de leur intervention. 

En consequence, si la Premiere Commission 
veut veritablement le retour de la Grece a la 
paix eta une vie normale, elle ne peut qu'ordonner 
le retrait de Grece de toutes les troupes etrangeres 
et recommander au peuple et au Gouvernement 
grecs et a toutes les parties interessees au reta
blissement de la paix, de negocier un accord et 
d'etablir un gouvernement capable de rendre 
enfin la paix et la prosperite a ce pays. 

Le general RoMuLO (Philippines) precise que 
la loi que l'on a donnee comme un exemple 
d'intervention americaine etait le Philippine 
Trade Act de 1946, qu'il avait soutenu au congres 
americain oil il representait la Republique des 
Philippines avant !'obtention de l'independance. 
D'ailleurs le peuple philippin a ete consulte par 
un plebiscite et par une majorite ecrasante il 
a adopte cette loi. 

La seance est levee a 13 heures. 




